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The Committee met at 10:00 a.m.

Chair (MacKinley): Nice to see Colin is
back again. There’s some more information
that’s come to us, so if it’s okay with the
Committee, we’ll start right into Mr.
Younker here in responses to questions. The
questions were raised on November 15th,
2005, and Mr. Younker got back to us about
- when did you get back to us? January 13th.
It took you quite awhile to get back.

Colin Younker, Auditor General: We
were waiting for some information to come.

Chair: What?

Colin Younker: We were waiting for some
information to come.

Chair: Is there any way you can speed that
up when you’re at this with those groups? A
lot of this information is from government,
and the KPMG report. You know, it’s not
like you had to go out and get - it is quite a
time. Like, the questions were asked on
November 15th and here it’s January 13th

before we get it back. November, December,
two months.

Colin Younker: There were two things.
One, we wait for the official transcript to
come to us which we go through and get the
questions off of, and then we had to
correspond -

Chair: Well, that’s our fault.

Colin Younker: - with KPMG in this case
and get some information back. We’ll try
and turn it around as quickly as we can.

Chair: How long does it take for these to
get transcribed?

Clerk of Committees: It just depends on
the workload.

Chair: Something as important as this, is

there any way we can rush it up? You know,
to get these questions in and out? Because
there’s near a year up and we’re still not
through this. Anyway -

Colin Younker: And we did have to
correspond with KPMG and they got back to
us.

Chair: All right. Information Requested by
the Public Accounts Committee. We’ll start
at page 1, I guess, at 7.4. Everybody’s got
the information sheets?

Colin Younker: We’d asked KPMG to
correspond back on some of the backup
information -

Chair: Yes.

Colin Younker: - on the difference in the
margin reporting which they have done in
the letter that they provided, and they gave
some examples here - July 2003, August
2003, and October 2003 - showing a
difference in the reporting in the margins.

Chair: All right. I guess we’ll just start at
7.4 there, the information you got back.
We’ll go to the KPMG dated letter of
December 6th. What we’ll do is we’ll go
around the table. Has everybody got the
letter in front of him? We’ll start with Mr.
McKenna. Is it okay if we use people’s
names or do you want me to go with the
titles?

Mr. Bagnall: (Indistinct).

Chair: Right. We’ll start with Dave. Do you
have any questions on that, Dave?

Dr. McKenna: I just have a comment,
maybe, as opposed to a question. When you
look at the inventory and the accounts
receivable, one time it’s higher, one time it’s
lower. I assume in my reading this over, it’s
probably just a difference in timing when
the (Indistinct) report was done because
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maybe the product was sold a couple of days
later, or booked to be sold. Is that the
interpretation of what I see in that?

Colin Younker: It could be, Dave, but I
guess the point of it is, is that the reporting
was supposed to be the same for both
groups. That was the point. That was in the
letter of offer.

Dr. McKenna: Did they send stuff to the
bank at a different time than they sent it to
the BDI? That’s what I’m trying to figure
out there.

Colin Younker: It should have been the
same report at the same time.

Mr. Bagnall: Different dates on it, Colin,
weren’t there?

Colin Younker: There could be different
dates on it.

Mr. Bagnall: That would fluctuate. In a $50
million business or $100 million business, a
fluctuation is going to happen with
inventory in and inventory out. That’s what
I’m looking at when I look at that.

Colin Younker: But the point is, is that the
letter of offer said that the same report was
supposed to go to both BDI and the bank.
You go back the letter of offer.

Mr. Bagnall: But in actual fact they were
both paid at different dates, right?

Colin Younker: They could have been done
on different dates.

Mr. Bagnall: Yes.

Chair: Are you through?

Dr. McKenna: That’s fine. That’s the only
question I had.

Chair: Wayne?

Mr. Collins: No, I think David summarized
it.

Chair: Cletus?

Mr. Dunn: I’m going to defer to later on.

Chair: All right. Jim?

Mr. Bagnall: I’ll defer to later on.

Chair: Wes?

Mr. MacAleer: I take issue to (Indistinct)
question of timing and also a question of
where the numbers were allocated. You’re
talking about receivables and inventory. It’s
a work in progress. A day in a company can
be a long time.

Chair: All right. Robert.

Leader of the Opposition: I’m okay for
now, thanks.

Colin Younker: Just to finish on that
though, Wes. They were supposed to report
on the same day. The same report was
supposed to go to the same places. That was
the issue. The letter of offer stated that. The
report that went to the bank was supposed to
go to BDI and it should have been the same
report. They may have done it using
different dates and that’s what resulted in
the different numbers, but it was supposed
to be the same, the same one.

Chair: I don’t know if this is the right place
to get into it, you can tell me, but this is the
KPMG report. When government sold Polar
to Ocean Choice, they gave them all the
receivables. Like, if there was money owing
to Ocean Choice, Ocean Choice got to
collect the receivables, is that correct?

Colin Younker: No, the receivables were
collected by the Receiver except for the
fishermen’s accounts receivable.
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Chair: Pardon?

Colin Younker: Except for the fishermen’s
accounts receivable.

Chair: Well, the fishermen’s accounts
receivable is what I’m talking about.

Colin Younker: It was collected by Ocean
Choice.

Chair: Well, so -

Colin Younker: But the trade accounts
receivable were collected by the Receiver.

Chair: I’m talking of fishermen. Fishermen
are a trade, too -

Colin Younker: Yeah.

Chair: - or they’re doing business with
them. So the receivable - so Ocean - did
Polar go bankrupt? In the legal terms of the
law, did Polar go bankrupt?

Colin Younker: Polar’s not bankrupt.

Chair: No, it never went bankrupt.

Colin Younker: It’s just the assets were
realized off. The security, the security was
realized off.

Chair: Yeah, so all of a sudden the Receiver
got the authority to collect a certain part of
the receivables that were owing to Polar,
correct? Yes or no?

Colin Younker: Yes.

Chair: All right, because we need records.
Because they don’t get nods, there’s no
tapes here, except for the CBC camera.

All right. So then the fishermen receivables,
or the fishermen what they owed Polar, was
given to Ocean Choice to collect. Why was
that done? Or who would make that

decision? Would the Receiver make that
decision or would it be Cabinet or the
government?

Colin Younker: I’m not sure who made the
actual decision. It would be part of the
negotiation between Ocean Choice and the
Receiver when they - in their RFP.

Chair: So then the Receiver would make a
deal, would negotiate this with Ocean
Choice, right?

Colin Younker: Yeah, part of that process,
the RFP process.

Chair: Who was in control of the Receiver,
the province?

Colin Younker: The Receiver’s supposed
to act independent.

Chair: All right.

Colin Younker: They were working for the
province.

Chair: So what I want to find out, did the
province make the final decision on that or
was it the Receiver made the final decision,
and why they would make a final decision
such as that? To say: Hey look, this sector,
we will collect this, this other sector of
fishermen, you will be responsible for
collecting. Like, somebody would have to
prove that agreement. Would not the
Cabinet or - like, when this was all said and
done, the Receiver sat down, then they’d
present that to Cabinet. Would they not, the
Receiver?

Colin Younker: I’d have to check the
process.

Chair: I want you to check out the process
because there’s a big question out there, is
why Ocean Choice would get the -

Mr. R. Brown: The choice assets.
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Chair: Yeah, well would the fishermen
know? Now another question is, is
fishermen owed Polar and Ocean Choice, it
looks like Ocean Choice - no, Polar owed
the fishermen is what I’m told, but they
were never paid.

Mr. R. Brown: They owed the suppliers.

Mr. Dunn: They don’t own the fishermen.

Chair: What?

Mr. Dunn: They don’t own the fishermen.

Chair: They owed them, owed them money,
owed them money.

Mr. Dunn: Polar owed the fishermen
money?

Chair: Yeah. 

Colin Younker: You’d have to check and
see if there’s any offsets between Ocean
Choice. When Ocean Choice was dealing
with the fishermen, you got to see if there
were any offsets done.

Chair: See if there were any offsets.
Because if you look in the credit reports,
Ocean Choice put judgements against a
group of different fishermen. Now, was that
offset by the money that was owed to those
fishermen? Or was that just sort of - like, did
the fishermen ever get what was entitled to
them? That’s what I’m wondering.

Mr. Bagnall: Well, if Ocean Choice put
(Indistinct) -

Colin Younker: I don’t have that
information.

Mr. Bagnall: - it would be the other way
around. The fishermen -

Chair: You can find that out, then.

Mr. Bagnall: The fishermen owed Ocean
Choice.

Chair: And this here whole deal when it
was all done had to go back to - like, the
Receiver didn’t sell Polar Foods to Ocean
Choice, did they?

Colin Younker: They sold assets.

Chair: The assets.

Colin Younker: Yes, they sold the assets.

Chair: But wouldn’t that have to be
approved by the people that hired them?

Colin Younker: I’ll double check the
process and see.

Chair: All right. Now on that section there,
anybody else got any questions?

Leader of the Opposition: I just got a point
here. It’s just kind of something that came
off the top of my head, though. You
mentioned that Polar Foods was never in
bankruptcy. Polar Foods did not go
bankrupt.

Colin Younker: Not that I’m aware of, no.

Leader of the Opposition: Not that you
were - because the Premier thinks Polar
Foods went bankrupt. So I’m just
wondering, did Polar Foods go bankrupt or
did it not go bankrupt? Because the Premier
said on April 27th, 2004: Mr. Speaker, Polar
Foods unfortunately went bankrupt.

Chair: Yeah.

Leader of the Opposition: So I’m just
wondering, did it go - it was my
understanding that the Government of
Prince Edward Island purchased the assets
of Polar Foods before they went bankrupt to
prevent them from going into bankruptcy so
they could control what happened to the
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assets of Polar Foods, and not the Bank of
Nova Scotia. So therefore, I’m like you, I
kind of believe that Polar Foods never went
bankrupt because the province stepped in
and bought it out. Would that be correct?

Colin Younker: Yeah, the last word we had
from the Receiver was that the company was
still in existence.

Mr. R. Brown: Yeah.

Colin Younker: It hadn’t gone bankrupt,
gone through bankruptcy.

Mr. R. Brown: Yeah.

Leader of the Opposition: So why would
the Premier think that it went bankrupt?

Colin Younker: I’m not sure whether the
terminology of seizing the assets and
bankruptcy - it may just have been
terminology. 

Chair: See, for being a layperson like
myself, it’s hard to understand it. You’re
saying here that the Receiver, whoever it
was, sold the assets of Polar to Ocean
Choice. But then when you look at your: 
“Why weren’t all the Polar plants reopened
when Ocean Choice started processing
lobster on PEI?” Then: “Government
advised the Receiver which plants and assets
to include in the Request for Proposals.”

So if this Receiver was doing it themselves,
the government wouldn’t be able to come in
and advise them what to do?

Colin Younker: The government had the
right to determine the number of licenses,
and the licenses would determine the
number of plants.

Chair: No, but the “Government advised
the Receiver which plants and assets to
include in the Request for Proposals.” Like,
the government’s advising the Receiver. If

the Receiver wasn’t getting orders from
government - “Government decided that not
all plants would continue to be licensed for”
processing lobsters. All right? So once they
pulled those licenses away - or the
“Government decided that not all plants
would continue to be licensed for lobster
processing.” So they had to inform the
Receiver of that. “Government advised the
Receiver which plants and assets” - so by
the government.

Colin Younker: Yeah, that’s what the
Receiver told us at the time.

Chair: Yeah, so the Receiver’s telling you
that, so the Receiver is dealing with
government. So let’s say you had an
accounting firm, you had one in
Summerside, Charlottetown, Tignish, in
your previous life, and you had to get a
license from the government and you went
into receivership, and all of a sudden the
government said: We’re not going to allow
this accounting firm to open, this accounting
firm to open. That would make your assets
of your particular business, say - I’m just
using a theory - be worth less money.
Because all of a sudden Polar had these
assets of these plants. They have the plants,
hey? But without the license, they’re
probably worth almost zero, or whatever the
real estate value is. So by the government
pulling away the licenses from these smaller
plants, in theory, drove the price of Polar
assets down.

Dr. McKenna: They just pulled the lobster
license away.

Chair: Yeah, well that’s what it means, you
can’t do lobsters.

An Hon. Member: (Indistinct).

Leader of the Opposition: Are we still on
section 7.4?

Chair: Yeah.
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An Hon. Member: (Indistinct).

Leader of the Opposition: Or (Indistinct).

Chair: No, we’re right on the front page,
the KPMG Report, if you want to read -

An Hon. Member: (Indistinct).

Chair: Ah, 7.4, 6.0, I’m going down the list.
Everybody done with 7.4, answered
questions?

An Hon. Member: (Indistinct).

Mr. R. Brown: Just one comment.

Chair: These are interviews by KPMG.
Now it’s just so we don ’t lose our trains of
thought, but Polar was in receivership.

Mr. R. Brown: No, it wasn’t in
receivership.

Chair: It’d have to be in receivership in
order to bring in a Receiver, would it not?

Colin Younker: The Receiver was called in
to sell the assets.

Chair: That shows they were in
receivership.

Mr. R. Brown: No.

Chair: Is it?

Colin Younker: They had - an agent - they
had the assets of the company to sell. The
government contracted them to sell the
assets as a Receiver.

Chair: Yeah, so by the government - so
what I asked you earlier before, like, was it
the Receiver sold the assets to Ocean Choice
or was it the government?

Colin Younker: It would have been -

Chair: Approved it. Like if the government
approved it? Because all of a sudden you got
the government in here pulling these
licenses or saying there’s only going to be
so many plants are going to process a
license.

Colin Younker: I’d have to go back and
check what the approval process was, but it
would have been the Receiver negotiating
with Ocean Choice.

Chair: What?

Colin Younker: It would have been the
Receiver negotiating with Ocean Choice.

Chair: Yeah, we see that. We got the
Receiver negotiating with Ocean Choice.
But what I see here, we got Cabinet, Mr.
Binns and the boys in Cabinet, pulling the
strings of the Receiver. Because basically
what they’re doing is by pulling the license
they’re saying: These plants aren’t going to
be licensed. They’ve already hired, like the
government paid, or the Receiver, they
brought them in. So it looks like the
government was working with the Receiver
on this, on what to be done.

Colin Younker: We’ll have to check that.
I’ll check and see where the final approval
process was.

Chair: All right, you check that and bring it
back because there’s a great error here. Was
it the Receiver that decided not to pay the
fishermen or was it Binns and his Cabinet
decided not to pay the fishermen? These are
the things we got to find out.

Mr. Ghiz.

Leader of the Opposition: Okay, thank
you. I’m just trying to go down the list here
so I’m still on 6.0. It says: “Provide a list of
people that KPMG interviewed?” I believe
you mentioned two people, Kent Scales and
Mr. Stewart. Is that correct?
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Colin Younker: Yes, that correct.

Mr. R. Brown: And why wouldn’t they
provide the other names?

Colin Younker: That’s all the government
people that they interviewed.
 
Leader of the Opposition: Okay.

Colin Younker: So they didn’t want to
provide the private people that they
interviewed.

Leader of the Opposition: Because?

Colin Younker: Based on their
confidentiality in agreement with them, I
think, before they interviewed them.

Leader of the Opposition: So we’ll never
find out who the other people were that were
interviewed?

Colin Younker: No, I don’t think so.

Leader of the Opposition: Okay. Then it
says: “General. In your interviews with
shareholders did you ask them why they
kept the small plants open?” It says here:
“The one shareholder that we interviewed” -
so we’ll never know who that shareholder
was, I guess - “indicated that there was some
pressure to keep plants open because there
were sales targets to achieve as well as
employment targets in the preferred share
agreement. In addition each shareholder was
trying to protect their former plant and
would not want to see it closed.”

So we really had two different dichotomies
here working against each other. We had the
shareholders on one point trying to protect
their former turf and we had the government
on the other hand trying to run Polar Foods
like it was a Crown corporation. Now if
you’re a private company, I take it you’re
there to make money. That’s common sense.

Colin Younker: That’s correct.

Leader of the Opposition: The only groups
that are not there to make money are really
government that offers services to people, is
essentially how it’s supposed to work. So
I’m just wondering. If there was pressure to
keep plants open and to achieve sales targets
as well as employment targets, but the
company was losing money, wasn’t it
doomed to fail?

Colin Younker: It would continue to lose
money. This goes back to the original
argument of rationalization for the plants
and the overcapacity of the industry.

Leader of the Opposition: But if the
government was pressing them to do it, then
was the government trying to run it like a
Crown corporation?

Colin Younker: I don’t know if the
government, if you could say they were
trying to run it like a Crown corporation.
They were trying to maintain the jobs, I
think is what they were trying to do.

Leader of the Opposition: But the jobs, as
we’ve seen in the long term -

Colin Younker: Caused a lot of losses
because of the overcapacity in the plants.

Leader of the Opposition: So they were
looking for, in my opinion, short-term
political gains instead of long-term
investments for the Province of Prince
Edward Island.

Colin Younker: When the plants went
under at the end of the day (Indistinct).

Leader of the Opposition: Yeah, the plants
went under at the - so it was basically
doomed to fail by this.

Colin Younker: There wasn’t (Indistinct) -
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Leader of the Opposition: By this. Because
it looks like there are two different factions
working against each other. You had
government that says: This has to happen.
You have shareholders that say: We want to
protect our plants. And then we’ve seen
memos where I think it was the former CEO
Ken MacDonald asking if they could close
some plants and they were being told no,
they can’t. Okay, well that’s just some of
my comments.

The next question was: “Why weren’t all the
Polar plants reopened when Ocean Choice
started processing lobster on PEI?” I find
this section very interesting, Mr. Chairman.
It says here: “We were advised that a
number of potential buyers indicated that
they would not be interested in the assets of
Polar Foods unless there were fewer
processing licenses.” Which we all know
about, and I think that came out loud and
clear during the whole process.

But then it says: “Government decided that
not all plants would continue to be licensed
for lobster processing. Government advised
the Receiver which plants and assets to
include in the Request for Proposals.” So it
was government that decided that it was
only going to be the two plants that were up
for bid. Now this information here, would
this have come from one of the interviewees
in government, most likely?

Colin Younker: You’re on the -

Leader of the Opposition: The first page,
General, third question down: “Why weren’t
all the Polar plants reopened when Ocean
Choice started processing lobsters on PEI?”

Colin Younker: Yes, this interview would
have come from the shareholder.

Leader of the Opposition: From the - well,
the shareholder wouldn’t know that
government advised the Receiver.

Colin Younker: Oh, I’m sorry.

Mr. Dunn: Who’s the “we” there?

Leader of the Opposition: It’s the general.

Colin Younker: In our interview with the
Receiver is where we were advised that
government advised the Receiver which
plant and assets to include in the Request for
Proposals.

Leader of the Opposition: So that is the
truth, then? Because they are the Receiver,
they were told. But during the whole debate
that was going on, I heard the Premier many
times say that all plants in the province
could be bid on. But he had advised -
because it says here “Government,” so
government is the Premier and the Cabinet -
advised the Receiver which plants could be
bid on.

I was at meetings in Gaspereaux, in Anglo,
in Howard’s Cove, where the premier
indicated that: No, all plants could, in fact,
be bid on. But here it says: “Government
advised the Receiver which plants and assets
to include in the Request for Proposals,”
which was just the two plants.

Colin Younker: Yeah, and that came
through the license, where the two licenses
came through.

Leader of the Opposition: Yeah, exactly,
well, that’s what they were asking. They
were asking: Could they process lobster?
And the Premier said: Yes, they could, if
someone wanted to buy them, they could.
But it says here: “Government advised the
Receiver which plants and assets to include
in the Request for Proposals.” So those other
plants had no choice. There was only the
two plants.

Colin Younker: They could sell the plants
without the license.
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Leader of the Opposition: Yeah.

Colin Younker: They could sell those
assets that way. The license had a value.

Leader of the Opposition: Exactly, the
license had a value. So my question is: Did
the Premier know what he was talking about
at the time and, including that, the minister
of fisheries who basically said on many
occasions that all the plants, if there were
legitimate arguments, could be bid on?

Mr. Bagnall: They could have been. 

Leader of the Opposition: But it wasn’t in
the RFP, and it said government advised
here. If that was true, it should have said:
Government advised the Receiver that all
plants should have the right to be bid on.
But it says here: “Government advised the
Receiver which plants and assets to include
in the Request for Proposal.” We know that
there was only two plants included in that
Request for Proposal.

Dr. McKenna: I think all plants were
included.

Colin Younker: All the plants were.

Leader of the Opposition: With lobster
licenses.

Mr. Dunn: The question there that says:
“Why weren’t all the Polar plants reopened
when Ocean Choice started processing
lobster...?”

Leader of the Opposition: Exactly.
“Government advised the Receiver which
plants and assets to include in the Request
for Proposals.”

Mr. Dunn: That’s in the companies’
negotiation.

Chair: No.

Mr. Bagnall: The problem being is that
anybody that had a chance to go in and view
all the plants, and if they wanted to change it
and say that we wanted to run both plants, it
could have happened.

Chair: But it’s all hearsay. All we can go by
is in front of us. What we got in front of us,
we got the Receiver in front -

Mr. Bagnall: Listen, I didn’t interrupt you.
I don’t expect you to interrupt me.

Chair: Well, you interrupted him, and they
interrupted our leader, so how many of you
that want to - let’s start with the leader and
we’ll go with the leader, or Mr. Ghiz,
continue.

Leader of the Opposition: I’m just stating
facts, Mr. Chairman. The facts were that
under the RFP - there were two plants with
lobster processing licenses that were up for
sale in the RFP. Now, it was always up for
contention at that time why there was only
two plants. There was a lot of hearsay on
whether or not it was government that
believed there should only be two plants,
whether or not the people bidding on it
believed there should only be two plants.
From what I can see here is, it says here:
“Government advised the Receiver which
plants and assets to include in the Request
for Proposals.”

Chair: Yes.

Leader of the Opposition: So it was
government that decided which two plants -

Chair: That’s right here. I brought that up 
(Indistinct) -

Leader of the Opposition: - in the Province
of Prince Edward Island should remain open
with a lobster processing license. That’s all
I’m trying to point out. Because there was a
lot of debate and contention at the time on
who, in fact, was making those decisions,
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and from what we see here from the
Receiver, government told them which
plants to put in the RFP.

Colin Younker: Based on the licenses
(Indistinct).

Leader of the Opposition: Based on the
licenses, exactly, that’s exactly what I’m
saying.

Chair: That’s what I brought up earlier at
the beginning of the meeting. It’s right in
front of us, black and white, from your
report, Mr. Auditor, is: “Government
advised the Receiver which plants and assets
to include...,” and you were going to get
back with information on that.

Now, Mr. Dunn, have you got a question?

Mr. Dunn: Thank you.

Chair: And then Mr. Bagnall.

Mr. Dunn: I guess the “we” there refers to
KPMG: “We were advised that a number of
potential buyers indicated that they would
not be interested in the assets of Polar Foods
unless there were fewer processing
licenses.” I guess my reading into that: We
have nobody bidding on the process if it’s a
status quo. So in other words, anybody
interested in buying out Polar wanted fewer
licenses out there and fewer processing
plants.

Now Ocean Choice did win the competition.
They did buy Howard’s Cove. But no
license attached to it, but they bought the
facility. So the facilities were - if they
wanted those facilities, they could bid on
them and take them and use them, and they
resold them to Rubin’s. But the thing was, I
think the offer was there but the potential
buyers refused to bid on the status quo.
That’s my point.

Chair: Mr. Bagnall.

Mr. Bagnall: No, I’m fine.

Chair: All right.

Mr. R. Brown: Mr. Chairman, just a quick
question.

Chair: All right, is it on the matter? Good.

Mr. R. Brown: A quick question. Okay,
February 27th. I think that this is where
there’s a tremendous amount of confusion
here. The government went to the bank and
said: We will pay off the debt.

Mr. Collins: Purchase the debt.

Mr. R. Brown: Purchase the debt. No, no.
They went to the bank and said: We will buy
those notes from you. Okay, so they went to
the bank and said: Here is the money, I want
the note. They went to Eddie Babineau and
said: Here is $2 million, I want your note.
Okay? Could you just take us through a bit
of a scenario, what happened next? Because
everybody thinks it went bankrupt, and -

Chair: No, it didn’t.

Mr. R. Brown:- if it went bankrupt and a
Receiver was appointed under a bankruptcy,
then the Receiver is supposed to work in the
interest of both the debtor and the
shareholders and get a maximum return in
order to give some money back to the
shareholders, if that’s the case. Is that not
right?

Chair: Just one question before you start.

Mr. Dunn: (Indistinct) what the question is.

Chair: Well, I’m the chairman. Just to get
things straight with - was that question not
asked to you and you were going to get back
to us, whether it didn’t go bankrupt, it went
into receivership.

Mr. R. Brown: What’s the difference



Public Accounts                                                                                                   26 January 2006

11

between receivership and bankruptcy?

Chair: Quite a bit of difference.

Colin Younker: There’s a difference. In
this case, the government paid out the debt
at the bank.

Mr. R. Brown: Yeah.

Colin Younker: So when they paid out the
debt, they got the assets.

Mr. R. Brown: Correct.

Colin Younker: The assets secured the
debt.

Mr. R. Brown: Now hold it now, I’m still
owning the company.

Colin Younker: Yeah, the assets secured
the debt.

Mr. R. Brown: Now you owe by debt.
Okay, you can’t walk in my company. You
just can’t walk in and say: You owe me $51
million. They must have said to the Polar
shareholders: Can you pay? Did they go to
the shareholders and say: Can you honour? I
own this debt. Like a monopoly game. I own
this, I bought it, can you pay for it? Can you
give me the money you owe me on this
debt?

Colin Younker: What my understanding is,
is that when the bank was going to call - the
bank called the loans so they would realize
on their security, which are the assets in
Polar Foods.

Mr. R. Brown: Yeah.

Colin Younker: Which secured their debt,
the past debt.

Mr. R. Brown: Yeah.

Colin Younker: So once the government

learnt that, they went and paid out the Bank
of Nova Scotia.

Mr. R. Brown: Correct. And they own the
debt.

Colin Younker: They owned the assets.

Mr. R. Brown: Yeah.

Colin Younker: They had the security.
They owned the security at that time.

Mr. R. Brown: So are you saying the bank
owned the assets? The bank went to the
shareholders and said: Pay the debt. 

Colin Younker: Yeah.

Mr. R. Brown: And the shareholders at that
time said: I can’t pay the debt.

Colin Younker: So then the bank would
realize on their security, which is the assets
of the company. Before that happened, the
government paid out the -

Mr. R. Brown: Before that happened.
Okay.

Colin Younker: I forget the exact steps, but
the government paid out the bank -

Mr. R. Brown: Yeah.

Colin Younker: - and got the assets, the
bank security, which is the assets, in return.

Mr. R. Brown: But see what happened was
that day down at the court house, I went
down to the court house and I said: Okay,
the formal bankruptcy papers are going to be
filed today. Okay? By the Bank of Nova
Scotia, remember?

An Hon. Member: They foreclosed.

Mr. R. Brown: They were foreclosing,
okay. Then the court never had to meet
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because the court said: There’s nothing to
meet about, the debts have been purchased
by the Government of Prince Edward Island.

Colin Younker: So then they have the
security on the assets.

Mr. R. Brown: Yeah, so wouldn’t they -

Colin Younker: So they had appointed the
Receiver at that time to liquidate the assets.

Mr. R. Brown: But wouldn’t they have had
to go to the courts to demand that, you
know, we put them into receivership?

Some Hon.  Members: No, no.

Colin Younker: I don’t know the legal
(Indistinct) what the next step is.

Chair: No, we’d have to find out the legal
details.

Mr. Dunn: (Indistinct) done that?

Mr. R. Brown: No, that’s the point.

Chair: The Receiver was working for the
province.

Mr. R. Brown: The bank filed with the
courts and said: We want our money. There
has to be a court order then to put them into
receivership. At 12:00 o’clock that night, a
$51 million cheque went to the bank and
said: Here, we’re paying you off, Eddie
Babineau, here’s your two million. Then the
court - there was no receivership at that time
or there was no bankruptcy at that time.
What my contention is -

Chair: I hate to cut you off, but the question
is -

Mr. R. Brown: What?

Chair: We don’t have anybody who is an
expert in that, and Mr. Younker was already

asked to get back to us.

Mr. R. Brown: Well, we what we want to
know -

Chair: We want to know the answer to that.

Mr. Bagnall: He’s already bringing the
question back.

Chair: The question back, so let’s move
onto another question. Are there any more
questions on those pages?

Mr. R. Brown: Yes.

Chair: All right, go ahead.

Mr. R. Brown: Because my argument is,
Mr. Chairman -

Chair: I know what your argument is but
it’s already been argued. We’re waiting for -
Mr. Younker doesn’t have expertise to
answer the question. He’s got to get it back
to us.

Mr. Dunn: I hear what you’re saying.

Chair: All right, do you want to hear -

Mr. R. Brown: No, my argument is that
Polar Foods is now owned by the
Government of Prince Edward Island.

Colin Younker: No.

Some Hon. Members: No.

Mr. R. Brown: No. They didn’t -

Mr. Dunn: You should have it there.

Mr. R. Brown: So when was the
receivership filed? And when was it filed
with the courts? Anyway, you get back.

Chair: That’s what I said. It wasn’t going
anywhere.
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Mr. R. Brown: No.

Leader of the Opposition: Mr. Chair?

Chair: Go ahead.

Leader of the Opposition: Thank you. On
the last question on the page: “During its
interviews, did KPMG obtain any
information on the issue of keeping the
small plants open?”

Now I find this quite an interesting e-mail
from a Philip P. Clarke, I guess, at KPMG to
Ms. MacAdam here. I want to go down to, I
guess, it is the third bullet, and it goes to my
arguments before about the Crown
corporation sort of mentality. It says:
“Certain parties agreed that the government
focus was on keeping the plants open,
regardless of cost and risk assumed.”

Now I take it that’s just not one person
talking because it says here: “Certain parties
agreed that the government focus...” Do you
know who gave that answer?

Colin Younker: No, I don’t know who gave
- this is their interview notes. This is from
their interview notes, and it might be one
person saying certain parties, so I don’t
know the background on these.

Leader of the Opposition: That’s quite a
statement, wouldn’t you think? That
government money is invested in a private
sector business where it says “Certain
parties agreed that the government focus
was on keeping the plants open, regardless
of cost and risk assumed.” As a taxpayer and
Auditor General of the Province of Prince
Edward Island, do you think that’s any way
for the province to be investing money?

Colin Younker: That goes back to the
rationalization of the plants, the original
problem of too many plants and the
overcapacity.

Leader of the Opposition: Which leads me
to the final point here which I’m sure you’re
well aware of. It says here: “Certain
government financial support was
predicated on Polar meeting payroll targets.
This meant restructuring was, in effect,
subject to government approval. It was
difficult to attempt to restructure as
government was not willing” - not willing -
“to change payroll targets. Industry studies
prepared before the creation of Polar noted
that the PEI lobster industry suffered from
significant overcapacity. Although this was
a known problem, it was not addressed.”

So what I’m saying here is government
basically drove Polar into the ground by the
restrictions that they put in place, and they
were unwilling to bend and it says here: “It
was difficult to attempt to restructure as
government was not willing to change
payroll targets...”

Mr. Dunn: Never requested it, the
government never requested the change, it
was never requested (Indistinct).

Colin Younker: So it goes back to the
original issue, the overcapacity. At the start
of that -

An Hon.  Member:  It was requested. 

Colin Younker: - of Polar which wasn’t
addressed at that time, we mentioned that in
our report. There were studies, they didn’t
mention that, and it goes forward to the time
when the rationalization was basically done
at the end, when the two licenses were
issued rather than the six when Ocean
Choice bought from the Receiver.

Leader of the Opposition: So, but like,
what I’m wondering is here - and I just
heard echoes here talking about no one
asked that they change payroll targets. But I
don’t know why they would say that when it
says - why someone would then say they
were not willing to change payroll targets.
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To be not willing, you got to be asked.

Wouldn’t you say that it’s difficult for a
company to survive when they’ve got
government - regardless of cost and risk
assumed, throwing money at them - they’ve
got them saying: You have to meet certain
employment payroll targets and yet the
company is losing money?

Colin Younker: It’s hard to make, it’s hard
-

Leader of the Opposition: It’s hard to
make a go of it.

Colin Younker: It’s hard to make a go of it.

Leader of the Opposition: Thanks.

Chair: ow, Wayne.

Mr. Collins: Just a brief comment, Mr.
Chair, for the benefit of Mr. Ghiz there.

Regarding all of those bullets, I would draw
his attention to the very first paragraph,
though, and I think it is an important point
that’s made by Mr. Clarke in his memo. I
quote: “We did not attempt to verify, or
further investigate, information concerning
the issue of keeping small plants open.”

So everything else that follows there sort of
begs the question: From where? So I’ll just
leave it at that.

Leader of the Opposition: That just goes,
Mr. Chairman, to my point that if they 
couldn’t verify it, that’s what we’re here for.

Chair: We’re here to verify it.

Leader of the Opposition: We’re here to
verify, and I believe the only way we’re
going to verify these things is if we can
invite the shareholders before the
Committee. If we can invite the bureaucrats
before the Committee -

Mr. R. Brown: To verify.

Leader of the Opposition: - to verify these
things. If you’re actually concerned with
taxpayers losing $31 million and hundreds
of Islanders out of work, well then, you will
agree with the Liberal caucus that we should
have the opportunity to question some of
these people that were involved in the
intricacies of this Polar debacle.

Mr. Collins: Mr. Chair.

Chair: Go ahead.

Mr. Collins: Just as a further note here, I
think it’s important to come back to another
issue about the whole issue of plant closures
here. If memory serves me right, did not
Polar shut down the Summerside plant? Did
they not shut down a plant in Morell? This
was done in the course of their life and
government didn’t say: You can’t shut down
that plant.

So they had opportunities here to rationalize
and did so in the course of the life of the
company and I think it’s important to note
that the goal here was the viable long-term
health of Polar. So that’s why government
did not object when they closed Morell and
Summerside. So they did have the flexibility
to make moves in that regard and they
weren’t being always constrained by
so-called payroll or employment targets.

Chair: Anyway, you guys -

Leader of the Opposition: I don’t know
what information you’re reading. You must
be here just to defend it.

Chair: Mr. Leader, Mr. Ghiz, just one
minute. You guys can debate this on the
floor of the House. What I have a
(Indistinct) about, the problem I have with
this is, KPMG, we asked them at a meeting
to maybe come before us when we needed
more information. We wanted it right. When
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you look and see a private confidential letter
to Mr. Younker from Mary Jane Andrews,
partner of KPMG, and basically what they
say is this: “...supply the Committee with a
full list of people interviewed during
KPMG’s Polar Foods International Inc.
engagement, we are pleased to be able to
partially meet the Committee’s request.”
They could only come so close to meeting
our request.

This is why we need to bring the
organization, KPMG, before us, because
basically what they’re doing, they’re hiding
behind the legal law. It’s already quoted
here. They can’t tell us who they
interviewed. They’re using the word - well,
what we could do within law. The law of the
province - if we request them before us, they
have to answer the questions if they’re there
in front of this Committee, if this Committee
decides to do it.

Now if this Committee decides to get to the
bottom of this $32 million mess, they’re
writing to us, almost begging us to bring
them forward, but they can only go so far
within the law. But we can bring them
before us here if the Committee decides to
bring them here, and they’ll have to tell us
who they interviewed and what those people
told. Right now, they’re hiding behind the
law and I mean, it’s up to the Committee
here if you want to try to shove this under
the rug or do you want to get to the bottom
of it?

This was delayed from the time we met in
the centre over there. We met over there at
the centre with Mike Currie and them and
everybody said: Let’s wait until the forensic
audit report and everything comes in. But
now we can request where they’re using the
word law. They’re hiding and they’re
basically asking us, telling us: If you want to
bring us forward, we’ll come forward.
We’re the law.

Is that not correct, Madam Clerk? Would

you explain to this Committee how that
works?

Clerk of Committees: Thank you, Mr.
Chair.

As the Committee knows, we do have the
power to send for persons, papers and
records. That’s a power that all the standing
committees of the Legislature have. I would
refer the Committee then to guideline No.
33 which says: Witnesses are required to
answer all questions put to them by the
Committee.

Thank you.

Chair: Good. Thank you. So it’s up to this
Committee. The Auditor has gone as far as
he can with his power that he has. You
know, it’s as simple as that. KPMG has
given as much information as it can due to
the laws governing them. They almost met
our Committee’s requests.

“In this regard, we have attempted to contact
the government officials interviewed to
request that they consent...” Well, you
know, if we bring them before them, they
don’t have to waste all their time doing this.
We can bring them forward. They tell us the
names and then we can decide, as a
Committee, if we bring these people in or
not.

So that’s where it’s at. Do you want to cover
up the $32 million or do you want to have -
like, really, what should be going on is a
full-scale public inquiry into this to find out
where this money, in whose back pockets
these dollars went into. There’s too much
money missing here. There are too many
things that we’re almost touching on but we
can’t get to the bottom of it and it’s up to
this Committee to go farther. So it’s going to
be up to you people.

Now has anybody got any questions? 
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Leader of the Opposition: Are we onto the
next page now?

Chair: Yeah.

Leader of the Opposition: I got a question.
On Section 7.1: “Did you ask BDI why they
allowed the loan agreement and marketing
agreement deal to go ahead when their legal
counsel had concerns about the marketing
agreement?”

“We were advised that even though BDI had
concerns about the marketing agreement,
BDI was not a signatory to the agreement.
The marketing agreement was signed by FPI
and Polar Foods.”

I don’t where you got that answer, but that
answer provided to you, most likely by BDI,
is clearly an inadequate answer, which I
think is another reason, Mr. Chair, why we
should have someone here before us -

Mr. Dunn: In the first (Indistinct) and
secondly (Indistinct).

Leader of the Opposition:- from BDI, Mr.
Chairman.

They told you that they were not a signatory
to the marketing agreement between FPI and
Polar Foods, but the thing is that was not the
question. The question to BDI was: Did they
allow the marketing agreement to go ahead
against the advice of legal counsel? That
was the question. I just want to return to
your original report, which I’m sure you’re
probably more aware of than anybody else,
and it’s in section 7.87 where I just want to
quote from and it says:

“We were advised that an exclusive
marketing agreement was unusual for a
company like Polar Foods that had a
recognized brand and an established sales
force. The marketing agreement that was
critical to this restructuring contained very
few aspects designed to protect the interests

of Polar Foods. The agreement was signed
between the multinational company and
Polar Foods, however, PEI Business
Development Incorporated reviewed the
marketing agreement and was required to
sign a consent allowing Polar Foods to enter
into such an agreement. In addition, BDI
was required to pledge preferred shares as a
security.”

I want to repeat this: “...however, PEI
Business Development Incorporated
reviewed the marketing agreement and was
required to sign a consent...” Required to
sign a consent. Why? This still goes. Why
did BDI allow this deal to go ahead even
though they were receiving legal advice
saying not to, even though they knew it was
a bad deal for Polar Foods? Therefore, it
was a bad deal for the taxpayers of Prince
Edward Island.

I think what I really want to get here too,
and I know you’re going to have trouble
answering this - really the only person that
can answer this is someone from BDI,
whether or not it’s Kent Scales or not. This
answer here? Totally inadequate. We need
to know from Kent Scales, did Mike Currie
or Pat Binns say to him: Allow this deal to
go ahead?

Colin Younker: I don’t have the answer to
that. We got the same answer, basically, that
they weren’t part of the marketing
agreement, that they passed the advice on to
Polar -

Mr. Dunn: The other question is
(Indistinct).

Colin Younker: - and that’s the answer we
got.

Leader of the Opposition: That was just an
interesting echo that I heard there. The
question was: Could they stop it? And here
it says in your report: “The agreement was
signed between the multinational company
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and Polar Foods, however, PEI Business
Development Incorporated reviewed the
marketing agreement and was required to
sign a consent allowing Polar Foods to enter
into such an agreement.”

So the Province of Prince Edward Island had
the opportunity to reject that agreement, did
they not?

Colin Younker: They had the opportunity
to reject the whole transaction because the
requirement for the transfer of shares
required the province’s approval, or BDI’s
approval.

Leader of the Opposition: So the
province’s approval was necessary, okay? It
was obviously a deal that was not in the best
interests of the taxpayers of Prince Edward
Island or Polar Foods. There was legal
advice to PEI Business Development
Incorporated on that deal saying that that
deal should not go ahead.

What we want to know is - and obviously,
the answer we got from BDI was totally
inadequate - we want to know who gave the
overriding say to allow that deal to go
ahead. It could come from no other place but
Cabinet, could it not?

Colin Younker: Yeah, they would have
approved, the whole transaction would have
been approved by Executive Council.

Leader of the Opposition: So Pat Binns
and Mike Currie had legal advice. They
knew, you would presume - let’s presume
here - that they would know that there was
legal advice saying that this was not a good
deal, that BDI knew that this was not a good
deal. Why would they allow this deal to go
ahead? That is the sole question that we’re
trying to find out. How do you think we’re
ever going to find that information out?

Colin Younker: I don’t know the answer to
that. You’d have to ask BDI for it.

Leader of the Opposition: We’d have to
ask BDI. So if we had Kent Scales or Mr.
Stewart before the committee, perhaps that
could help us find out that information?

Colin Younker: Yeah, we don’t the
information on it. We got the same answers
as the KPMG got. We’ve got the same
answer.

Leader of the Opposition: So basically,
they gave an non-answer?

Mr. Dunn: No, they didn’t, they’re not a
signatory.

Mr. R. Brown: No, but they had to.

Leader of the Opposition: No, but they are.
They had to. That’s the thing. This echo is
bothering me again, because the auditor is
plain and simple. Why this echo would
question the auditor is beyond me. The
auditor, you indicated that they had to sign a
consent to allow this deal to go ahead, did
you not?

Colin Younker: They didn’t have to sign
the marketing agreement.

Leader of the Opposition: No.

Colin Younker: That’s a correct statement.

Leader of the Opposition: Exactly, they
had to sign the consent form.

Colin Younker: For the transfer of shares
and for the share transaction to occur at that
time, they had to agree to it.

Leader of the Opposition: Exactly. Well I
believe, Mr. Chairman, this is unequivocal
proof -

Chair: Oh yes.

Leader of the Opposition: - that we need in
someone from BDI to help get to the bottom
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of this, whether or not it is the current
deputy minister of tourism, Kent Scales, or
whether or not it is other bureaucrats from
PEI Business Development. That is the only
way. We’ve asked the auditor. He’s gone to
BDI to try and get an answer. He received
an inadequate answer. If this is not a reason
to invite someone to appear before a
committee, I’m not sure what is.

Chair: I already said we need the KPMG
before us, too.

Now getting to the memo to Executive
Council for the $12 million, it was only
signed by Paul Jelley, the information you
got back. Aren’t ministers supposed to
approve them? There’s no minister’s
signature on that. Can a deputy minister sign
a memo to go to Cabinet for approval?

Colin Younker: Normally you would think
that that would be signed. I’m sure the
minister was at the meeting.

Chair: But why wouldn’t the minister - was
that legal to not have the minister sign it?
Like I mean, Paul Jelley probably was only
in the job for a short period of time. Subject,
Polar Foods International, PEI Development
Agency approval. The minister, there’s no
signature. The deputy, Paul Jelley, signed it.
There’s a $14 million loan. Like, is that
legal even to go without the minister’s
signature to Executive Council?

Colin Younker: I’d have to check and see
what on the memo.

Mr. Bagnall: It could be (Indistinct)
blocked out on the top there because only
part of the thing is on our copy.

Chair: So what you’re saying is we’re not
getting -

Mr. Bagnall: I don’t know.

Chair: - the government or Executive

Council is not giving the auditor all the
information.

Leader of the Opposition: I think the
doctor is on Treasury Board. Wouldn’t a
minister have to sign something like this? 

Colin Younker: Normally it would be
signed. Normally it would be signed. 

Dr. McKenna: I wasn’t on Treasury Board
at the time.

Leader of the Opposition: No, but you
know what the rules are.

Mr. R. Brown: What’s the current rule?

Chair: Yeah, what’s the rule?

Mr. R. Brown: Can just deputy ministers
send documents up to Treasury Board and
get -

Leader of the Opposition: For $12
million?

Mr. R. Brown: - $12 million?

Chair: Yeah. Like here, a $12 million loan
just before the election, you were giving
them, and all you got is Paul Jelley’s
signature on there, who was probably only
on the job for a few days.

Dr. McKenna: In most cases, I see them
signed by either a minister or someone
acting for the minister -

Chair: Acting.

Dr. McKenna: - but I don’t know if it’s
always the case, I don’t know.

Chair: In all fairness, he shouldn’t have
answered that question, you’re not a -

Dr. McKenna: I wasn’t around then.
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Chair: You wouldn’t be called a reliable
witness (Indistinct).

Dr. McKenna: Thank you very much.
Thanks for your vote of confidence.

Chair: No, but we got to get it from - Mr.
Auditor, could you find that out for us?

Colin Younker: I would say that they
should be signed.

Chair: Yeah, but the question is -

Colin Younker: It’s not signed, no.

Chair: - are there briefs, like I mean, is
there a brief - if there’s anything criminal
here. This what we got to look after. Like,
that’s $14 million just before the election.

Mr. R. Brown: They can always argue
ministerial responsibility, but no one took
responsibility.

Chair: But nobody took responsibility. So
we got to find out. Basically, it’s no good
talking about it anymore. You find out if it’s
legal to do that, if there’s anything criminal
involved in that, and bring it back to us.

Colin Younker: Okay.

Chair: Because I mean this thing is getting
worse and worse the farther we go. The
farther you delve into it and it almost looks
like, as a lot of people are saying, we should
have a full-scale public inquiry into this.
Because we’ve been at this for some time
and it depends on how far this Committee
wants to go. But KPMG is basically saying:
If you want that information, you got to
bring us before you and we’ll supply it; if
not, we can’t. You know, the information
we’re looking for: names they interviewed,
etc. That was discussed. But when you’re
dominated by the government that lost the
money, it’s going to be hard to get it through
this Committee. So, simple as that.

Anybody got any more questions?

Mr. R. Brown: Yeah, I have some
questions, Mr. Chairman.

Chair: Go ahead.

Mr. R. Brown: Thank you.

Recommendation 3.2: “BDI requests
Executive Council approval to provide BNS
with a $12 million deficiency guarantee on
Polar’s operating line. The guarantee will
expire on November 30, 2003. BDI is
currently in discussion with BNS to
determine if language can be added to the
guarantee to allow the guarantee to apply
only to that portion which is out of margin.”

It’s been reported all the time that there was
a $14 million guarantee, so this Executive
Council order - and I’m questioning if this is
the proper Executive Council order or is
there not another one. The request was for
$12 million. How did it get to 14 without
Executive Council approval?

Colin Younker: Our understanding - the
decision of Council approved the 14 million.

Mr. R. Brown: No, but this is the document
that went -

Colin Younker: This is the material that
went to make the decision.

Mr. R. Brown: This was put on the
Executive Council table and said: We need
14 million. So wouldn’t it have been
changed? Or is there a new one presented?

Colin Younker: The only information we
have is there was a meeting between FPI
and Polar on July 8th and there was
discussion at that meeting about the amount
being 14 million. So I have to assume that
this discussion came forward to the meeting
whether this was discussed before the
decision was made. That’s the information



Public Accounts                                                                                                   26 January 2006

20

we have.

Mr. R. Brown: But Mr. Auditor, this is my
point. What kind of shoddy operation is
being run down there that you have a
request for $12 million, and then all of a
sudden, a guarantee. Executive Council sits
around the table. Who is making the
decisions down there? You sit around a table
and you’re presented with a document -
because I’ve prepared these - and, you
know: We need $12 million.

Colin Younker: It was 14.

Mr. R. Brown: Then the Cabinet says: Yes,
12 million will go to you. Now, the question
begs me is like, you know, the shoddy work
that’s being done here is that, you know,
documents can go up to Executive Council,
not be signed by ministers, asking for a
certain amount of money, and then things
are signed outside of Cabinet for different
than what was approved in Cabinet. Like -

Chair: No.

Colin Younker: No, the decision was for
14, so that would be approved.

Mr. R. Brown: Where is the decision? We
don’t have the decision, then.

Chair: We don’t have it.

Mr. R. Brown: I want to know why they
upped it from 12 to 14 in the decision. I
guess we should have asked for the decision
too, but you know, you’d think that whoever
gave you this, the clerk or whatever, said the
request was for 12 million. By the way, the
decision was for 14, and here’s the decision
also. You should give them that. Or is it just
a matter of clawing our way through this
and down at the government buildings all
we’re getting is: Just give them the bare
amount, give them nothing else, and then
hopefully, time will pass and people will get
bored with this.

Also, the bank only requested it to
September 30th, the guarantee. But the
government said: No, no, we want to go to
November 30th. Was this like, you know,
was this -

Chair: Why?

Mr. R. Brown: Why?

Colin Younker: We don’t have the
background other than (Indistinct).

Mr. R. Brown: Okay, well, that would be in
the decision then, why they wanted to go to
November 30th.

Colin Younker: It should be in the decision
or it could be in the decision, yes. The
decision was for 14 million. The only
information we have is that there was a
meeting with FPI and Polar and -

Mr. R. Brown: So people -

Colin Younker: - the result of that meeting
must have went and discussed it at the
Cabinet meeting. I know your point.

Mr. R. Brown: So the document that was
prepared by BDI staff was even wrong.

Colin Younker: There was changes
between (Indistinct) -

Mr. R. Brown: What, was Eddie Babineau
outside the Cabinet room saying: No, no, I
need 14. Okay, Eddie, we’ll give you 14,
whatever you need. This is just something
we put together.

Colin Younker: I’m not sure of that.

Mr. R. Brown: I’m just trying to -

Colin Younker: I can’t answer that.

Mr. R. Brown: Okay, I’m just trying to
figure out a decision process.
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Chair: Anyway, have you heard anything in
on - the RCMP are looking into the KPMG
report, correct?

Colin Younker: Yes, we haven’t heard
anything back.

Chair: When will you hear something
back? Have you checked to see how they’re
getting along?

Colin Younker: We haven’t talked to the
Attorney General’s Office about it. We
haven’t heard any information back on it.

Chair: Shouldn’t you start looking in?
That’s been some time. I mean, you are the
Auditor General’s department.

Colin Younker: We can check into it.

Chair: What?

Colin Younker: We can check into it and
see.

Chair: You turned it over to the RCMP.
Isn’t that correct?

Colin Younker: We turned it over to the
Attorney General’s Office. They turned it
over to the RCMP.

Chair: Well, the attorney - your job is to go
to the Attorney General’s.

Colin Younker: We’d have to go back to
the Attorney General’s Office.

Chair: Now, you’re the one that pointed the
finger and turned it over to the Attorney
General’s Office.

Colin Younker: Yeah.

Chair: I think you should follow up and see
what’s going on.

All right. Mr. Ghiz.

Leader of the Opposition: Thank you very
much.

In this document that the hon. member was
talking about that isn’t signed by a minister
for $12 million, I just want to get the simple
answers here. Where did the extra two
million come from and when was it
requested?

Colin Younker: We don’t have anything
where it was requested. This is the memo we
had that went to Cabinet. We have -

Leader of the Opposition: But you know
that 14 million was given out, right?

Colin Younker: Yes, 14 million was given
out. That was a Decision in Council.

Leader of the Opposition: So is there a
paper trail for that 14 million, then?

Colin Younker: I’d have to check and see if
there was any additional paper trail for it.

Leader of the Opposition: You’ll check on
that for us?

Colin Younker: Yes.

Leader of the Opposition: Okay. Now, it
says here in section 2.2: “BNS is requesting
a $12 million loan guarantee to expire
September 30th, 2003.” Okay? Then if you
go down to section 3.2, and this is a
followup to the hon. member: “The
guarantee will expire on November 30,
2003.”

I want to know if there’s documentation that
says why they would extend that.

Colin Younker: We’ll check on that.

Leader of the Opposition: Because, you
know, I hate to say it, but we all know that
they were planning a fall election. I’m sure
they didn’t know what the exact dates were.
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I’d hate to see it if they extended that out to
November 30th just for their own timetable.
So if you could get back to us on that, it
would be much appreciated. 

Mr. R. Brown: Mr. Chairman?

Chair: Just one thing. The question was:
“Could you bring back the supporting
documents for the July 10, 2003 decision of
Executive Council to issue the $14 million
loan guarantee?” You just brought back the
$12 million document. You didn’t bring
back the other $2 million. So could you look
for that other $2 million documents? Like,
$2 million is a lot of money.

Okay, who’s next? Richard.

Mr. R. Brown: Okay, I want to go on to
3.3: “BDI have lost faith in Polar’s financial
management and as such BDI recommends”
-

[Due to technical difficulties, a short part of
the meeting was not recorded. The
Committee took a short recess due to
technical difficulties]

Chair: All right, let’s call the meeting to
order.

Now it’s five past 11. Due to the technical
difficulties caused by the radio station we’re
back together.

Dr. McKenna: (Indistinct) station.

Chair: We’re not sure which it is, CHTN or
- so we’re going to go - and are there any
other questions?

Leader of the Opposition: I just want to go
back to one section -

Chair: All right. Go ahead.

Leader of the Opposition: - here. It has to
do with a few points which are going to lead

to my conclusion on why I believe we need
more people to testify. I want to go back to
the 7.1 on the second page again. It was a
simple question: “Did you ask BDI why
they allowed the loan agreement and
marketing agreement deal to go ahead when
their legal counsel had concerns about the
marketing agreement?”

“We were advised that even though BDI had
concerns about the marketing agreement,
BDI was not a signatory to the agreement.
The marketing agreement was signed by FPI
and Polar Foods.”

So they really gave us an answer, to the
Auditor General of this province and to the
Public Accounts Committee, that did not
answer the question that was asked. I
believe that that is a serious issue, Mr.
Chairman. I hate to say it, but they can get
away with that politically, but in terms of a
department or a Crown corporation
answering a question that the Auditor
General of the province asked, and that the
Public Accounts Committee is asking
through the Auditor General, I find quite
alarming.

Because we didn’t ask if they signed the
agreement. We asked: “Did you ask BDI
why they allowed the loan agreement and
marketing agreement to go ahead...?” Which
they did have to sign over their shares as
you indicated, and they choose not to
answer.

Mr. Chairman, I believe this is a specific
reason on why it is vitally important for us
to have bureaucrats from BDI before this
Committee, why it’s vitally important for us
to have KPMG before this Committee, to
find out who exactly testified. It’s just
another example. The point that the hon.
member just raised about the CFO - and that
is  more clear advice that BDI themselves
said had lost faith in Polar Foods, had asked
that before any other further dollars went
ahead, Mr. Chairman, that the CFO should
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resign. Yet this same bureaucrat sat at the
next meeting and didn’t ask for the
resignation or didn’t ask for that CFO.

So in other words, someone was overruling
the bureaucrats at BDI and we need to find
out who was responsible for that, because
those are the people that are responsible for
taxpayers losing $31 million.

Chair: Now, is there a question in that to
the auditor?

Leader of the Opposition: The question is:
Do you believe that’s an adequate answer?

Colin Younker: It’s not a great answer.

Chair: All right.

Leader of the Opposition: No.

Chair: Any motions will have to come
under new business. Like, we don’t want
motions, I’d just as soon not have motions,
if we could, on who we bring in with the
auditor here because he and his assistant,
Ms. -

Leader of the Opposition: I’m going to ask
the Auditor. I’m going to put forward a
motion later on for them to come before the
Committee. I’m asking you: Will you go
back to BDI and indicate that they did not
answer the question you put forward to
them, and look for a better answer?

Colin Younker: If the Committee would
like me to do that.

Leader of the Opposition: I’d like you to
do that.

Mr. R. Brown:  Well, the committee should
go for it.

Mr. Bagnall: One person’s not the
Committee.

Leader of the Opposition: Okay. Do you
believe that’s an adequate answer?

Mr. Bagnall: Yes.

Leader of the Opposition: That’s
embarrassing.

Chair: All right. Let’s settle this one right
here now. The auditor says if the Committee
decides for him to go back - he’s already
admitted he didn’t get the right answer he
was looking for, if I am correct. Have you
got a motion on the floor to that, and we can
vote on it right quick?

Leader of the Opposition: I’m just asking
the Auditor if he will go back to - this is a
question that I believe an answer -

Chair: No, but the auditor told you if the
Committee wants that done.

Leader of the Opposition: Yes, but I just
want to premise that. I’ve asked the auditor
if he believed that this was the answer that
we should receive. He even indicated that
there is some information missing here. If
the members of this Committee agree with
the auditor, then we should ask the auditor
to go back and see if he can get a more
adequate answer.

So will the - I’m asking, and if someone
wants to disagree, they can disagree. I’m
asking the auditor if he can please go back
to BDI and look for more adequate answers.

Chair: No, but the Auditor said “if the”.
The auditor used the political answer to you.
What the auditor said was this - If the
committee decides this is what we want him
to do.

Leader of the Opposition: Yes.

Chair: For that way we’d have to have a
motion or a general consensus among the
Committee. Because the auditor, it looks
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like you’re not prepared to do that by an
individual from this Committee asking that
question, even though you admitted here on
the tape that you haven’t got the answer you
really were looking for. Is that correct?

Colin Younker: A lot of the questions that
are asked of us, we will get the information.
If the Committee doesn’t disagree, we take
it as approval that we’ll go get the question
answered. We do that with most of the
questions that are asked. We don’t ask for a
motion on each question that you ask us to
get additional information.

Chair: So you’re going to get that
information then without the Committee
agreeing to it. Like you said here, right on
tape, you said: If the Committee agreed to it.
I took that as a political answer from you.
You said: If the Committee agrees for you to
ask that again. So I’m only Chairman, I can
only chair what I hear here on this
Committee. Mr. Ghiz had a question he
wanted you to ask and you come back and
you said: If the Committee agrees to this.
That’s what you said, Mr. Auditor.

Colin Younker: That’s generally the way
the questions come. If it’s a committee, we
consider it a committee question.

Leader of the Opposition: Someone has to
object. Usually what happens is we ask the
auditor for a question. He said: I’ll go get
that information. If someone disagrees, then
we’ll have a debate on it. I’m asking the
auditor to do that. If someone wants to
disagree, they can disagree.

Mr. Bagnall: Be fair to the Auditor
General. According to the rules of this
Legislative Assembly Committee, any
question that comes to the Auditor General
for him to get information, it’s a question
asked by the Committee, not by one
individual person. If you go check the rules,
you would know that, Mr. Ghiz. I think you
probably would have looked at it. You’ve

been around long enough to know that.
Don’t be accusing the Auditor General of
making political decisions. That’s not the
case. He answered that a question asked has
to be the Committee that makes the request,
not any individual. That’s all he said. I think
that’s fair.

Leader of the Opposition: Okay. I’m not
saying that at all. What I’m saying is I’m
asking the auditor to do that. I don’t believe
every question that the auditor has gone
through we voted on in this Committee. If
you want to, you can dig up transcripts and
find out if every single question that’s on
here, we had a vote from this Committee to
find out if the auditor would go back and get
that. So I believe you’re misrepresenting the
facts here.

What I want to know is if there are people
who disagree with the Auditor going back to
finding, to get a better answer. If not, I’m
sure the auditor is willing to do that. So if
you want to object to looking for more
information from that answer that this
Committee asked, that you sit on, well, you
should agree with the request that I made to
the auditor. If not, you can disagree. Plain
and simple.

Mr. Dunn: I’ve missed a few minutes, I
guess I didn’t make it back in time.

Chair: No, that’s all right.

Mr. Dunn: Could you refer, Leader of the
Opposition, what you’re asking for?

Leader of the Opposition: Yes. What I’m
asking for is we’ve asked a question to BDI,
okay, through the Auditor General. The
auditor has asked the question. The auditor
has agreed that the question’s answer is
really inadequate. We have the authority to
ask the question, and now I’m just asking if
he’ll go back and look for a more adequate
answer.
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Mr. Dunn: Which question are you
referring to?

Leader of the Opposition: I am referring to
7.1 and it says: “Did you ask BDI why they
allowed the loan agreement and marketing
agreement deal to go ahead when their legal
counsel had concerns about the marketing
agreement?”

Mr. Dunn: Was that not asked to KPMG?

Leader of the Opposition: No, that was
asked to the auditor. KPMG was not before
the committee, yet.

Mr. Dunn: Why did they respond to it,
then?

Leader of the Opposition: No, BDI. We
were advised -

Mr. Dunn: No, this is information KPMG
had.

Chair: I’m sorry you weren’t here -
probably you should have been here - but
you weren’t here.

Mr. Dunn: (Indistinct).

Chair: Basically what’s going on - I don’t
want to get a debate between the two of you
- is the Leader of the Opposition asked a
question to the auditor. The Auditor has
already alluded that he didn’t get the right
information or all the information back. The
Leader of the Opposition, Robert Ghiz, has
asked the auditor to go back and get more
information. The auditor comes out and
says: If it’s a wish of the committee. I
believe that’s paraphrasing it as quick as I
can. But basically that’s where it is. In other
words, the auditor didn’t get all the
information he’s looking for from BDI when
he asked the question.

Leader of the Opposition: Exactly. Mr.
Chairman, you’re absolutely right, but also

the auditor does not need permission from
this Committee to go ask BDI a question on
an answer that he might think is inadequate.

Mr. Dunn: I guess what I’m referring to,
Mr. Chair, is that this is a report from,
KPMG report, regarding - and the question
there was responded to by KPMG. Is that
not correct?

Colin Younker:  No, this is our, this
question is to us.

Mr. Dunn: But (Indistinct).

Chair: You weren’t here. I mean, you’re
going to get the transcripts. We don’t have
time -

Mr. Dunn: No, I’m just trying -

Chair: We don’t have time to train
everybody.

Mr. Dunn: Mr. Chair, I’m talking about the
report in front of us. It says KPMG Report. 

Chair: Talking about the report in front of
you.

Leader of the Opposition: Let the auditor
answer the question.

Chair: That’s another one too.

Mr. Dunn: I understood that’s where the
answers came from.

Colin Younker: It’s a question asked of us
during the KPMG report meetings.

Chair: Yes.

Mr. Dunn: So this is a KPMG response.

Colin Younker: No, it’s our response.

Chair: Their response.
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Mr. Dunn: When you say “we” you’re not
talking about KPMG?

Colin Younker:  No. 

Chair: No.

Colin Younker:  Here we’re talking about
ourselves.

Chair: I’m sorry. We just don’t have time
on this Committee to bring you up to speed.
I’ve got to -

Mr. Dunn: Take your time, Mr. Chair. I’m
slow, but take your time.

Chair: Well, you weren’t here. You want to
be here.

Mr. Bagnall: Mr. Auditor General, what do
you think you’re missing from that answer?
You say it’s not adequate. What are you
missing?

Chair: That’s only speculation. That’s a
leading question. He doesn’t know what
he’s missing until he gets his answer back.

Mr. Bagnall: Well, he says it’s incomplete.
He must figure he’s missing something.
What are you missing?

Colin Younker: I guess we’re just looking
for the reason as to why, based on the
concerns, that it was signed.

Mr. R. Brown: Why the CFO wasn’t fired.

Colin Younker: The reason we’re giving is
that the marketing agreement was signed by
FPI and Polar Foods.

Mr. Bagnall: What was that? I can’t hear
you.

Colin Younker: I’m sorry. The answer we
got is the marketing agreement was signed
by FPI and by Polar Foods. They were the

signatories to the marketing agreement. We
never got an answer as to why, even though
there was legal advice saying that it wasn’t a
good agreement, why they let them go ahead
and sign it. That’s really it.

Chair: Fair enough?

Mr. Bagnall: That’s no problem. Go ahead.

Colin Younker: That’s the answer.

Chair: All right.

Leader of the Opposition: So my question
is okay.

Chair: Your question -

Mr. Bagnall: If you’d explain it like he did,
we’d have no problem.

Leader of the Opposition: That’s exactly
what I said. You can look at the transcripts.
You don’t need a motion. See, now we’re
back to -

Chair: We’re back to square one. Now, has
anybody else got anything of the auditor?

Mr. R. Brown: Yes.

Chair: Go ahead.

Mr. R. Brown: Mr. Chairman, the Auditor
General or the Public Accounts document
was released last Friday or last Monday at
5:00. I’m just wondering: When did you
receive the financial statements and when
did you give them back to the Comptroller’s
Office?

Colin Younker: I think the date’s in there
where I signed them, Richard. It would have
been around that time.

Mr. Bagnall: Mr. Chairman, wouldn’t that
come under new business when we get to it?
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Chair: Yes.

Mr. R. Brown: Oh, so the auditor stays
under new business?

Mr. Bagnall: Not when we’re discussing
(Indistinct).

Mr. R. Brown: Where is the date?

Chair: Consider outstanding business from
previous meetings and works out plan for
2006. The auditor is going to be in
attendance.

Let’s try and finish the Polar mess first, and
then under new business, if we’ve got
questions for the auditor, we’ll go to the
auditor under new business. But I’d just as
soon keep to the mess of Polar first and try
and get this straightened out.

Mr. Dunn: I move we move new business.

Chair: Did anybody have any more
questions on the previous Polar?

Leader of the Opposition: I just have a
question on motions. I believe today there
was more than enough evidence made that
we definitely need KPMG, perhaps some
bureaucrats from BDI especially, in before
this Committee. If I was to make that
motion, I’d make that under new business,
Mr. Chairman?

Chair: No, you can make it right now,
because we want to finish up this one here.

Leader of the Opposition: Okay.

Chair: Then we want to move to new
business so it’s not confusing.

Leader of the Opposition: I move, Mr.
Chairman, that in light of some of this
information that came to light today
regarding insufficient answers, regarding
hearsay, regarding us not being able to find

out who exactly gave information to KPMG,
that we ask KPMG to come before this
Committee, and that we ask the bureaucrats
- I believe their names are Kent Scales, who
was interviewed, and Neil Stewart, if I’m
correct on that, Mr. Chairman - I believe we
should ask those individuals to come before
the Committee.

Chair: All right, we’ve got a motion on the
floor. Is there any discussion on the motion?

I’ll start with Cletus.

Mr. Dunn: Question.

Chair: Wayne.

Mr. Collins: Question.

Chair: Jim.

Mr. Bagnall: Question.

Chair: Wilbur.

Mr. MacDonald: Question.

Chair: Wes.

Mr. MacAleer: (Indistinct).

Chair: Richard.

Leader of the Opposition: Mr. Chairman - 

Chair: Just a second. Richard?

Mr. R. Brown:  No.

Chair: Robert.

Leader of the Opposition: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Obviously no one wants to debate it. I
believe everyone’s heard the information
today, and if they’re representing their
constituents and if they’re concerned with
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the $31 million loss and finding out who is
responsible for it, I’m sure that everyone
will be approving this motion, and looking
forward to our next meetings.

Chair: Before I call a vote, the Clerk of
Committees has already explained out to us
how it works. So you know we need a
motion passed by this Committee to bring
the people that he referred to in his motion
forward. I’ll just allude to our last meeting.
We wanted to wait some time until we got
KPMG information back. As I said earlier,
they’re basically saying they’ve gone as far
as they can with the information unless they
come before us, because then they’re
protected by the House where right now
they’re not. It’s strictly up to this Committee
on how far you want to go. 

So with that, all in favour of the Leader of
the Opposition’s motion, please raise your
right hand.

All opposed to it, please raise your left hand,
or right hand, whatever hand, it doesn’t 
matter.

The motion has been defeated. It looks like
this Committee just wants to bury this, as
Wilbur MacDonald reported to.

Mr. Bagnall: Is debate allowed on the vote?

Chair: Well, it’s already there.

Mr. Bagnall: You’re not allowed to do that.

Chair: Oh, yes I am.

Mr. Bagnall: No, you’re not.

Chair: Yes, I am. I’m summarizing it. The
vote is over with and it looks like this
government -

Mr. Bagnall: (Indistinct)  make a motion to
adjourn, then?

Chair: You can make a motion whenever
you want. You want to take your candy and
go home. Go home to your fifth floor or run
down to the fifth floor, you can do whatever
you want to do. There’s a motion to adjourn
on the floor by the leader of the, by the
deputy - 

Mr. R. Brown: No, we’ll not vote on this.

Chair: No, there’s a motion on the floor. A
motion to adjourn is in order at all times,
right?

Clerk of Committees: Yes.

Chair: Wait until the Clerk of Committees
explains it. The deputy chairman has made a
motion to adjourn. All right. Could you
explain it? Is that motion -

Clerk of Committees: The motion is in
order, Mr. Chairman.

Chair: All right. There’s a motion on the
floor that will have to be debated.

Mr. R. Brown: I want to start Public
Accounts.

Chair: Is there any debate on the motion on
the floor?

Leader of the Opposition: Yes, Mr.
Chairman. I believe we have new business
and an update as to plans for a conference
that you’ll be hosting next summer.

Mr. R. Brown: You and the vice-chair.

Mr. Bagnall: We definitely have to go
through those. I’ll hold back that motion
until we deal with those two issues.

Chair: Can you withdraw a motion?

Clerk of Committees: With the consent of
the Committee, yes.
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Mr. Bagnall: I’ll withdraw the motion.

Chair: No, just wait now.

Clerk of Committees: With consent.

Chair: We’ll find out. Have we the consent
of the Committee for the deputy chair to
remove his motion from the Committee to
go home or go to the fifth floor or wherever
he was going to go? Have we got consent
from the Committee? Do we need
unanimous consent?

Clerk of Committees: Yes.

Chair: We need unanimous consent to get
this done.

Mr. Bagnall: Mr. Chair - 

Chair: Just wait.

Mr. Bagnall: Could you ask the motion to
be read? I don’t think you read it right. You
used your own opinion. That wasn’t the
motion, and if you’re going to ask for it, do
it right.

Chair: The motion was to adjourn.

Mr. Dunn: Thank you.

Chair: The motion was to adjourn. I’ll
explain it out to you. The motion was to
adjourn and -

Mr. Dunn: No, it wasn’t.

Chair: The motion was to adjourn.

Mr. Dunn: No, it wasn’t.

Chair: Yes, he said - 

Mr. Dunn: (Indistinct).

Mr. Bagnall: No other comments.

Chair: No. No. Just a second now until we
explain it.

Dr. McKenna:  We understand it.

Mr. Bagnall: We understand it. We don’t
need your explanation.

Chair: We need unanimous consent in order
for - he wants to withdraw the motion.

Mr. Bagnall: We know that.

Chair: Does he have to make a motion to
withdraw it?

Clerk of Committees: No, he can withdraw
it.

Mr. Bagnall: I already did that.

Chair: He wants to withdraw it. Have we
got unanimous consent of this Committee?

Hon. Members: Agreed.

Chair: I’m going to call for a vote on it. All
people who agree with the deputy chair that
he wants to withdraw his motion of basically
shutting the Committee down, raise your
right hand.

Mr. Bagnall: That wasn’t the motion.

Mr. Dunn: No, that wasn’t the motion.

Chair: To adjourn.

Mr. Collins: That wasn’t the motion.

Mr. Bagnall: Mr. Chair -

Chair: To adjourn then, to adjourn the
meeting and basically would have shut the
Committee down.

Mr. Bagnall: Okay. All in favour?

Chair: Are we all in favour?
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Hon. Members: Agreed.

Chair: We have unanimous consent. We’ll
continue. All right.

Mr. Dunn: New business.

Dr. McKenna:  Under new business, Mr.
Chairman.

Chair: Now, has anybody got any more
questions on -

Mr. Dunn: New business.

Chair: No. We aren’t into new business yet.
There was no motion put to go to new
business. We still have the auditor here.

Mr. Dunn: I have a motion. I have a motion
I have to call. Move to new business.

Chair: What’s your motion on the floor?

Mr. Dunn: To move to new business.

Chair: So your motion on the floor is to
move to new business.
  
Mr. Bagnall: Unanimous consent.

Chair: We don’t need unanimous consent
for that. We just need - is the Committee in
agreement?

Leader of the Opposition: Fine.

Chair: Yes, that’s fine. We’re on to new
business.

Dr. McKenna: Okay, Mr. Chair?

Chair: Go ahead.

Dr. McKenna:  Under new business I’d like
to - and we got this document this week on
Public Accounts - I’d like to invite the
Provincial Treasurer to come to our next
meeting to review this document with us,

and we can ask any questions to the
Provincial Treasurer. That’s my motion.

Chair: Is the Committee - there’s a motion
on the floor -

Leader of the Opposition: Can I amend
that?

Chair: You can do whatever you want to
do.

Leader of the Opposition: To also bring
the Comptroller as well.

Chair: It’s been amended.

Dr. McKenna: It’s up to the minister to
bring who he wants to bring.

Leader of the Opposition: I’m just asking.
I’d like to have the Comptroller as well. If
you want to disagree with me, that’s fine.
I’m amending it to also bring the
Comptroller.
 
Chair: So we have an amendment on the
floor of the motion. All in favour of the - is
there any discussion on the amendment?

Mr. Collins: Pretty straightforward
amendment.

Chair: All in favour of the amendment,
raise your right hands.

All opposed, raise your left hand.

Leader of the Opposition: Keep it political.

Chair: The amendment’s been defeated.
The original motion is to bring the treasurer
-

Dr. McKenna: Provincial Treasurer, yes.

Chair: - to the Committee for the next
meeting.
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All in favour, raise your right hands.

The motion has been carried.

Mr. R. Brown: Mr. Chairman?

Chair: Yes.

Mr. R. Brown:  One or two questions for
the auditor on the Public Accounts, before
we bring the - 

Chair: Yes, we’re into new business so we
still got half an hour left here.

Mr. Dunn: Could I ask the auditor to be
excused?

Mr. R. Brown:  No, well, I got just two
questions.

Chair: Don’t have to ask (Indistinct).

Mr. R. Brown: The auditor on a number of
occasions, Mr. Chairman, has stated the
lateness of this report. I think it’s crucial
that this Committee review why it took so
long to get this report to the people of Prince
Edward Island. After all, it’s the Public
Accounts Report, it’s not the minister’s
report. My question is: Who determines the
format of the financial statements? You or
the department of finance?

Colin Younker: They’re their financial
statements. They prepare the financial
statements. We would make suggestions
based on the handbook - the CICA
handbook or the PSAB handbook - as far as
presentation goes.

Mr. R. Brown: See, because I’ve looked at
other public accounts across the country and
it seems that over time our Public Accounts
is being changed. It becomes very difficult
to determine what the final result
departments are compared to what we voted
on in the Legislature. Other public accounts
books have: This was the vote in the

legislature, this was the expenditure. But
I’m seeing time and time again here, in the
expenditure side of things, that you have an
unaudited revised estimate. Is that the
budget or is that something they just put in?

Like, how are we as legislators, as you’ve
said a number of times, the reporting
mechanism back to us - if the books are
being changed and rejigged all the time,
how are we to say: Okay, we voted for, in
the Legislature, for example, for agriculture
we voted $40 million, but now you have a
revised budget in there of $47 million. How
are we supposed to determine what’s going
on if we voted for certain appropriations and
then, all of a sudden, can the government
just change these appropriations? Because if
that’s the case we may as well not have a
Legislature.

Mr. Dunn: Put a special warrant through.

Mr. R. Brown: No, they can’t. They
shouldn’t be allowed to change the budget.
That’s my argument. My argument is we
spend weeks in the House approving each
department’s budget. The minister comes on
the floor, okay? Now we get a set of
financial statements that, you know, we
voted for employee benefits. I don’t see
employee benefits here. I see a different
version of employee benefits. How are we
supposed to determine?

Colin Younker: We’ve recommended that
the statements follow the budgeted process.
That would be a good  recommendation for
this Committee to make.

Leader of the Opposition: Why don’t
they?
  
Mr. Dunn: We can make that
recommendation.

Colin Younker: You can make the
recommendation from your Committee.
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Mr. Bagnall: We can do that and review
that, make that recommendation, if we feel
that that’s a concern.

Dr. McKenna: Good question for the
minister.

Mr. Dunn: Good question (Indistinct).

Mr. R. Brown:  I guess, yeah. I hope he
reads the minutes and he can come in and
say: We changed the normal practice of
putting, you know - he adds items to the
budget, he adds items to the financial
statements. Workforce Renewal Program, he
adds an item. That wasn’t in the budget.
You know, program review, $9.5 million
savings, you know. My argument is -

Colin Younker: I think that was in the
budget but there’s no number beside there, I
don’t think, is there?

Mr. R. Brown: No, there’s nothing beside
it. So what this number is saying, and what
you’re saying to us, the minister told us in
the House, got approval in the House, that
he was going to save $9.5 million for
program review. He was going to save $9.5
and he saved - 

Colin Younker: It wasn’t spent.

Mr. R. Brown: He saved nothing. Well, it
was a negative expenditure which is a
saving. He saved nothing, according to you.

Colin Younker:  According to the
(Indistinct).

Mr. R. Brown:  What?

Colin Younker:  According to the numbers
there, yes.

Mr. R. Brown: Yes, but you audited it.

Colin Younker: Yes.

Mr. R. Brown: So this big Program
Renewal that he told the Legislature, he told
us as legislators, before we voted on the
budget: I guarantee you I’m going to save
$9.5 million in Program Renewal. Now
we’re told today: Didn’t save a nickel.

Colin Younker: (Indistinct) good
discussion to have.

Mr. Bagnall: That’s why we’re having him
in.

Mr. R. Brown: No, but that’s why we
should have the Comptroller in too.

Chair: Under new business, are there any
more questions to the Auditor?

Leader of the Opposition: No, but I’ve got
a -

Chair: I just want to try and wrap it up with
the auditor. Are there no more questions for
the auditor under new business?

Mr. Bagnall: Thank him for coming in.

Chair: I want to thank the auditor and Jane
for coming in, and if you can get that
information back to us, we would appreciate
it. Thank you very much for coming.

Now we’ll go to the Leader of the
Opposition under new business.

Leader of the Opposition: Thank you very
much. I think it might have been a motion
from this Committee a long time ago, Mr.
Chairman - a year ago - but there were some
delays and there were some scheduling
conflicts and then there were some - I don’t
know why - but there seemed to be some
child’s play in the House from the
government side over not allowing certain
members to testify.

Chair: Oh, yes.
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Leader of the Opposition: I believe that
there was still the hon. Kevin MacAdam -

Mr. R. Brown: Yes.

Leader of the Opposition: - who’s still yet
to testify before this Committee on Polar
Foods.

Mr. R. Brown: Wanted to. 

Leader of the Opposition: So I believe we
have two hours set aside. I’m sure that the
Provincial Treasurer is not going to take two
hours.

Chair: No.

Leader of the Opposition: I move a motion
that also the hon. Kevin MacAdam testify
before the next meeting, or whatever
meeting we can fit into his schedule,
because I know it’s always difficult to fit
into his schedule.

Chair: Related to Polar Foods.

Leader of the Opposition: Related to Polar
Foods.

Chair: Even the Premier requested that he
come before us and they sort of chastised
the Committee in the House for not having
him.

Mr. R. Brown: They blamed you.

Mr. Dunn: Yes.

Chair: I don’t why they blamed me for it.

Mr. Dunn: (Indistinct) chair.

Chair: Anyway, we -

Leader of the Opposition: Anyway, so I
make a motion that we invite the hon. Kevin
MacAdam -

Chair: There’s a motion on the floor.

Leader of the Opposition: - before the next
convenient meeting.

Chair: We’ll leave it up to the Clerk of
Committees. Is the Committee in agreement
with that?

Some Committee Members:  No.

Leader of the Opposition: No?

Mr. R. Brown: Oh, oh!

Chair: Look, you’ve got to make up your
minds.

Leader of the Opposition: But he was
complaining.

Mr. R. Brown:  He was complaining in the
House. The Premier was complaining.

Mr. Bagnall: (Indistinct).

Chair: There’s a motion on the floor.

Mr. Bagnall: Okay, let’s deal with the
motion.

Chair: All right. Anybody want to speak to
the motion? There’s a motion on the floor.

Leader of the Opposition: I heard the hon.
Premier and the hon. minister of fisheries in
the House complaining that he was not
allowed to testify before the Committee. So
I just thought that it would be courteous if
we allowed him the opportunity to testify
before the Committee.

Chair: When the Premier was in the House
he just wasn’t telling the truth on what his
statements were.

Mr. Dunn: Were you there?

Chair: Yes, I was there. And he wasn’t
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telling the truth.

Mr. Bagnall: One of the three days that you
were there for once.

Chair: We tried to arrange - and I’ll let the
Clerk of Committees explain it - to have Mr.
MacAdam before us, but he seemed to be
very busy on numerous occasions -

Mr. Dunn: He already had a meeting.

Chair: - on numerous occasions, and he
seemed to - and the Premier got up and
made statements that just weren’t truthful in
the House. I just didn’t push him on it
because I figured the place to go back to was
this Committee. Would the Clerk of
Committees have the information of when
we tried to get MacAdam here?

Clerk of Committees: I do.

Chair: Could you explain it to this
Committee?

Clerk of Committees: Certainly. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

The Committee will recall we’ve been
working on the file for quite some time.
Back in January of 2005, January 18th,  I
believe, 2005 - no, I’m sorry, the 20th of
2005 - the Committee agreed to invite a
number of people before it, including the
Minister of Agriculture, Fisheries and
Aquaculture. A number of other witnesses
were also invited in and they were scheduled
through January-February. We met many
times that winter.

In February, again we revisited the issue as
to whether the minister would be invited in,
and again the Committee agreed to do so. It
also agreed, though, to delay any further
deliberations on the matter until the forensic
audit was in. I did try to schedule the

minister and he did indicate he was most
willing to come in. There were scheduling
conflicts, and the Committee did move on to
other issues through a number of meetings
through January-February, and then into
May we were working on our report. We
started again in September, and we’ve been
working through the fall and up to date. So
we just - he has not been scheduled.

Chair: He hasn’t been scheduled. The
minister always agreed to come in. Very
cooperative, Mr. MacAdam, but he always
seemed to be busy every time we asked him.

Leader of the Opposition: Can we vote on
my  motion first?

Chair: We’re onto your motion. We’re just
explaining it out so everybody knows where
we’re at. Because I don’t like the Premier
getting up and basically not telling the truth
in the House.

Leader of the Opposition: I know. I agree
with you.

Chair: Now maybe he didn’t know, maybe
his members didn’t tell him. So I’ve got to
give him the benefit of the doubt. But it was
loud and clear. This Committee made all
efforts, other than a subpoena, to get Mr.
MacAdam before us, and I didn’t think we
should have to go that far to subpoena him
before us. But he was always very -

Mr. Dunn: Willing.
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Chair: - willing to come. But he’s just busy
every time we want him to come to our
meetings. So there is an area there and it
looks like he was avoiding, as far as I’m
concerned, of coming before us.

Mr. Dunn: Oh, oh!

Chair: I looks like the Committee, the
members on the Tory side, are going to
make sure he doesn’t come before us.

Leader of the Opposition: Can we have a
vote please?

Chair: Question.

All in favour of Mr. MacAdam coming
before us, raise your right hand.

All opposed, raise your right hand.

Mr. R. Brown: They’ve been ordered to
shut her down.

Leader of the Opposition: Mr. Chair?

Chair: Yes.

Leader of the Opposition: I just wanted to
do that to prove a point, that the hon.
government members on this Committee
are, in fact, trying to shut it down at all
costs. I’ll ask the Clerk of Committees to
correct me if I’m wrong, but I believe there
already was a motion to invite Mr.
MacAdam before this Committee -

Chair: Oh, yes there was.

Leader of the Opposition: - along with
numerous others, so I think it’s -

Mr. Dunn: It was rescinded.

Leader of the Opposition: No one
rescinded that motion.

Chair: No.

Leader of the Opposition: So I believe it’s
just up to the Clerk of Committees to go
ahead now and try and schedule Mr.
MacAdam in as soon as possible. We don’t
need a motion. I just brought up the motion -

Chair: We just wanted to show you up,
show what was going on.

An Hon. Member: (Indistinct).

Leader of the Opposition: No, no. I just
brought up the motion to show that these
government members are looking to shut
down the Committee. But now there was
already a motion on the floor inviting him.
Can we just continue on with it, please?

Chair: So, Mr. Dunn, have you got
anything to say?

Mr. Dunn: No, that’s good.

Chair: Vice-chairman?

Mr. Bagnall: No, not a thing. Get this
looked at.

Leader of the Opposition: Mr. Chairman,
would you please invite Mr. MacAdam
before the Committee, then?

Chair: We’ve got to find out from the Clerk
of Committees. What’s the story on this
then? We have a motion not to invite him.
We already had a motion on the floor that
we want to invite him.

Clerk of Committees: The second motion
does rescind the first. The Committee has
made its decision as to what it wants.

Leader of the Opposition: Oh, shut it
down.

Mr. Bagnall: Okay.

Chair: That’s exactly what happened.
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Mr. Bagnall: Are we going to talk about the
conference now?

Leader of the Opposition: Mr. - 

Chair: Just wait, the Leader of the
Opposition’s got the floor.

Leader of the Opposition: To withdraw a
motion, do you not need unanimous consent,
or to rescind a motion?

Clerk of Committees:  No. It’s another
motion.

Chair: Not a motion.

Leader of the Opposition:  It’s a brand
new motion.

Clerk of Committees: Withdrawing it, yes
indeed, you need unanimous consent but the
Committee has changed its mind.

Mr. Bagnall: Your motion overrides the
other one.

Clerk of Committees: Yes.

Chair: Your motion overrides the other one,
and as soon as they vote it down -

Leader of the Opposition: We know whose
decision it was not to bring Mr. MacAdam
before the Committee.

Chair: We know that. It’s nice to get it.

Mr. R. Brown: You’ll get up in the House
and say: Oh, you (Indistinct).
  
Chair: No. So I hope somebody does
inform the Premier of the truth and the facts.

Mr. R. Brown: You should have said that
to the Premier as chairman.

Mr. Bagnall: Are we going to talk about the
- 

Dr. McKenna: Can we get back to the
conference then, Mr. Chair?

Chair: Yes, we’ll go to the conference.
When we go to the conference I’m going to
leave it -

An Hon. Member: (Indistinct).

Clerk of Committees: (Indistinct).

Chair: No, we don’t need it in camera. I’m
going to leave it to our Clerk of Committees
to explain it to you because she’s looking
after it, if that’s okay with the Committee.

Dr. McKenna: Yes, fine.

Chair: Okay.

Clerk of Committees: Thank you.

As you know, Committee members, we are
hosting jointly with the Canadian Council of
Legislative Auditors an annual conference
of the Canadian Council of Public Accounts
Committees. So it is a joint conference. I’m
working closely with the Auditor General’s
department on the planning and I certainly
am happy to update with where we are with
that, and ask for your input, although you
can get back to me after the meeting or as
time goes on and things occur to you.

The official dates for the conferences are
September 10, 11 and 12. Delegates will
start to arrive on September 9th and we will
be providing the information on leisure
activities: golf, theatre, things they might
enjoy on Prince Edward Island. But it is
basically a free day for them. The next day,
Sunday, September 11th, again we will have
arrival of delegates and their guests all day
and we will start registration that day. We’re
planning some afternoon organized leisure
activities, a couple of choices, tours of the
North Shore, that type of thing.

I should mention that I’ve been working
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with Meetings PEI and we’ve sent out
what’s called lead sheets for supplemental
services for this conference. All the
members of Meetings PEI get an
opportunity to put forward their suggestions
and their proposed thoughts and so on. That
way I think it’s the fairest way to organize
it.

Sunday evening is the first official
conference activity and that’s a reception,
and that would be a joint reception, the
Chairman and the Auditor General to be
co-hosting that, and that is the opening of
the conference. The next day, Monday, is a
full slate of meetings, and this is one area
where I certainly would appreciate your
ideas and suggestions on guest speakers or
themes or topics that you would like to
pursue. We will be providing all of the
meals: the breakfasts for delegates and
guests, luncheons for the delegates and so
on. This is a day that there’ll be a full day of
partners or spouses’ companion program
while the delegates are in their sessions.

We start off with a joint session with the
auditors and then they will split off to their
own meetings, and the Public Accounts
members will continue with their meetings.
We get together for lunch. This is a second
opportunity for you to have some input. I
would appreciate ideas on an interesting
guest speaker. I know when we were in
Newfoundland they had a very interesting
talk on Newfoundland history and entrance
into Confederation. So it’s sort of a little bit
on the lighter side, but still informative.

Mr. MacDonald: If you had a person
(Indistinct).

Clerk of Committees:  Well, yes, I think
that would be really interesting, or if the
committee -

An Hon. Member: (Indistinct)?

Chair: Yes.

Clerk of Committees: Yes. Or other -

An Hon. Member: (Indistinct).

Clerk of Committees: Yes, exactly. His
name did come up, actually.

There’ll be business sessions in the
afternoon and we would end probably
between 4:30 and 5:00. Some free time.
Then Monday evening, traditionally, is the
big banquet for this conference, and
certainly we’re going to feature heavily the
best of PEI: the best music, the food, the
atmosphere, everything that we can do.

Then, after the dinner, the reception and
dinner, that’s really the end of it for that day,
although we will be having hospitality suites
which is just a fine opportunity for people to
get together.

Leader of the Opposition: What are the
dates again?

Clerk of Committees: Oh, 10, 11 and 12
September. This will be, I should note, the
fifth anniversary of the events of September
11th. We will have a moment to mark that in
some way because certainly our lives have
changed since that day.

Chair: So when we have this, we’re having
it at the Delta, is it? Where is the conference
going to be at?

Clerk of Committees:  The conference, we
do have a signed contract with the Delta for
the space, and I should say 2006 is going to
be a huge year for conference business in
Prince Edward Island. The very first
weekend that I could book that number of
rooms was September 10, 11 and 12.

Chair: And how many rooms do we need?

Clerk of Committees: I’m anticipating 110
delegates and approximately 40 to 45
companions.
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Leader of the Opposition: Mr. Chairman
has a bed and breakfast on his farm there.
(Indistinct).

Clerk of Committees: That may well be.
Maybe special guests.

Chair: I think that we did discuss, the
vice-chairman and I, about moving it out to
rural PEI, but I think we had trouble with
the amount of rooms and stuff. Is that not
correct?

Clerk of Committees: The number of
rooms, and also the meeting space, because
we need a really large room that will
accommodate possibly 160, 170 delegates,
and then we need smaller rooms to break out
into the meetings that will still
accommodate 80, that sort of thing.

Dr. McKenna: We could do receptions like
in the Delta or some other location like
Province House, or -

Clerk of Committees: We’ve got leads out
right now.

Dr. McKenna: I think that’s a good idea.

Clerk of Committees: Anyway, the next
day is Tuesday, September 12th, and again
we’re breakfast, back into our joint sessions.
The partners will have a tour that day. A
little bit different this day. The auditors meet
all day on Tuesday and traditionally the
public accounts people do end at noon. This
is another opportunity I would like some
input for. Perhaps an optional tour, and I
thought perhaps a farm to fork tour, a
working tour for the public accounts
delegates, where they would start at a farm
for example -

Chair: Good idea.

Clerk of Committees: - and then move to
the Atlantic Vet College, the Nutrisciences
Centre, and end at the Atlantic Culinary for

PEI products, and they’ve seen the whole
cycle, for example.

Chair: Or what about - I’m just throwing it
to the Committee -

Mr. Dunn: If you want to do a partner one,
you can do a fishery one as well.

Clerk of Committees: The partners are
having tea with the Lieutenant-Governor
this day.

Mr. Dunn: No, I’m saying a partner
program. If you do the agriculture, you can
do a fisheries tour too. Some people in
Newfoundland may want to do a fishery
tour. The partners tour - I’m not talking
about (Indistinct) -

Clerk of Committees: Those are exactly
the kind of ideas I’d like to hear about.

Chair: I think what I’d like to see is pick a
farm and have an agriculture tour, because
agriculture is number one.

Mr. Dunn: Nunavut -

Chair: What?

Mr. Dunn: Nunavut and Newfoundland
aren’t big into agriculture. I’m saying if you
do another one for fisheries you can give
them an option.

Chair: Or whatever. Then I’d like to - for
instance, Donnie Allan’s Potato
Manufacturing, Cardigan Bearing and Steel.
I don’t know. Maybe a boat place. There’s a
boat place in Morell there. Like, if you went
to Donnie Allan’s you could catch the boat
place or maybe somewhere in Montague.

Leader of the Opposition: Maybe that big
(Indistinct).

Chair: What?
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Leader of the Opposition: (Indistinct).

Chair: No, I’d like to take them where
they’re manufacturing products that are
being used on PEI. Like, you go to Bob
Barry’s boat place in Morell, is it?

Mr. Bagnall: Rob Barry.

Chair: Rob Barry. So they’re
manufacturing boats that are used here.
Donnie Allan is manufacturing machinery.
Cardigan Bearing is manufacturing grading
equipment.

Leader of the Opposition: (Indistinct)
they’ve got a grading facility up there.

Chair: We could even swing back through
McKenna’s grading facility, you know, or
maybe Haydens. Haydens would be grading
in September. McKenna’s probably aren’t,
but Hayden Produce -

Leader of the Opposition: They were
plowing last week.

Chair: Yes, but they have a grader going,
they’re grading. So the people could maybe
go into the grading room.

Some Hon. Members: (Indistinct).

Clerk of Committees: The conference is
over at noon on Tuesday. It’s only -

An Hon. Member: (Indistinct).

Clerk of Committees: That’s right.

Chair: I know, but I’m just throwing this
out to you.

Mr. Bagnall: Why don’t we put down some
ideas and then send them to Marian? Going
on like this, we (Indistinct).

Some Hon. Members: (Indistinct).

Leader of the Opposition: Let them come
to the following Committee.

Clerk of Committees:  Absolutely. So it
will be get those ideas. I’m waiting for the
lead sheets to come back. As I say, we’re
working very closely with the Auditor
General’s office. Things are going well.

Some Hon. Members: (Indistinct).

Chair:  I think what we - 

Mr. Bagnall: Madam Chair, Madam Clerk
of Committees, if you’d like I can, from
government side, fill you in with
information and stuff as we go along.

Clerk of Committees: Excellent.

Mr. Bagnall: I don’t mind working on a
committee, anything you would like, or any
work you want done, I’d help out.

Chair: I think if Jim and I, vice-chair and
the chair and the Clerk of Committees, if we
could sit down -

Clerk of Committees: Certainly.

Chair: - and sort of figure out what we can
do or where we do these tours or whatever.
Maybe, for instance, we could go to Donnie
Allan’s and then go down to the boat place
and maybe eat in Montague, for that matter.
I don’t know, you know. Catch Haydens on
the way back would be great. But all I’m
saying is there are different things to be
done there.

Mr. MacDonald:  Could I ask a question?

Chair: Yes.

Mr. MacDonald: What is the role of the
individual members of the Public Accounts,
in this Committee?

Clerk of Committees:  I’m hoping that
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you’ll want to provide some hospitality.
Perhaps you’d like to meet delegates at the
airport and assist them getting into their
taxis to the hotel or take them to the hotel to
attend the meetings. To basically host.

Dr. McKenna: We won’t be delegates per
se, though?

Clerk of Committees: You’re delegates if
you pay the delegate fee, certainly. But I
would expect that I would - I’m fully
expecting the Committee to be there.

Leader of the Opposition: The Legislature
will pay our delegate fee, won’t they?

Clerk of Committees: Wherever you
normally pay your delegate fees, yes.

Leader of the Opposition: What’s what?

Clerk of Committees: Wherever it
normally comes from, yes. But I think it
would be (Indistinct)

Leader of the Opposition: I think the
Legislature would pay that.

Chair: Your delegates are paid -

Mr. MacDonald: What is the fee?

Clerk of Committees: The fee is $300 for a
delegate and $150 for an accompanying
person.

Mr. Bagnall: If you’re an accompanying
person you have to pay for yourself. It
comes out of your own pocket. Your fee for
the vice-chair and the chair comes out of
Legislative Assembly budget.

Mr. MacDonald: Would delegate’s spouses
be invited to the receptions without paying a
fee or would they have to pay a fee? To go
to the welcome reception.

Mr. Bagnall: If they take part in any of the

functions, they have to pay a fee.

Chair: Yes.

Mr. MacDonald: The same as the CPC, the
Canadian Parliamentary.

Clerk of Committees: The same as the
others.

Mr. MacDonald: Same.

Chair: Basically what we should look at is
it would be nice to have all the Public
Accounts people at everything that’s going
on, if at all possible.

Mr. MacDonald: Okay.

Chair: And any of your spouses are
responsible for their payment. There’s a
registry fee.

Clerk of Committees: There is.

Chair: And your spouses are responsible for
that, any spouse.

Mr. MacDonald: The same as the Canadian
Parliamentary. Good idea.

Dr. McKenna: Are we planning a night at
the theatre? Like either Anne of Green
Gables - 

Clerk of Committees: The problem is
there’s only -

Dr. McKenna: - or the other show?

Clerk of Committees: It’ll have to be
something we can organize, and it’s an
optional thing, because it’s a short
conference. People arrive Sunday, there are
meetings Monday and Tuesday -

Mr. Bagnall: That’s why she’s asking for
ideas and the Committee will look at them
all.
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Dr. McKenna: So Tuesday night there’s
nothing planned.

Clerk of Committees: No, because really,
people will leave at lunch time on Tuesday
if they’re hoping to (Indistinct) home.

Mr. Bagnall: It will be an optional.

Leader of the Opposition: Our Septembers
are so beautiful.

Clerk of Committees: That’s right.
Certainly we’re hoping that people will
come and they will - there are hotel rooms
booked on either side of the conference so
people can come early, they can stay late,
and we’ll certainly encourage them to do so.

Chair: Do we get a special rate on the
rooms at the Delta?

Clerk of Committees: Well, yes, there is a
conference rate.

Chair: All right.

Leader of the Opposition: (Indistinct)?

Dr. McKenna: What is it? A hundred and
something, $190?

Clerk of Committees: No, it’s in the two
hundreds, the low two hundreds, $209.

Chair: And there are other motels around
that we should, when we send out the
information, if people want to book in some
of the other motels, they can.

Clerk of Committees: Certainly they can.

Dr. McKenna: At the end.

Clerk of Committees: Yes.

Chair: Because it depends. I know with
your conference, 8:00 they normally start, so
you don’t have much time for driving

around here or there, but Charlottetown’s
pretty small.

Mr. Dunn: What about bilingual? Is it a
bilingual conference?

Clerk of Committees: Yes, indeed. It’s
trilingual. We will have Inuktitut.

Dr. McKenna: They don’t bring their own
interpreter?

Clerk of Committees: They bring their
interpreters, but we’ll be providing the
booth equipment, and it’s very complicated
because we’re setting up two-fold rooms
with two sets of interpreters and two
conference (Indistinct).

Dr. McKenna: Just for the business
meetings only.

Clerk of Committees:  Yes.

Chair: Why don’t we do it this way? All of
the government members on this Committee
pass a list of what you think should be done
and discuss it with Jim and Robert and
Richard and Carolyn. Robert, you can
discuss -

Mr. Bagnall: Discuss it with you and you’ll
bring it forward.

Chair: Well, yes, Robert can discuss it with
me and we’ll bring it forward, and Jim and
I’ll meet with Marian and try and arrange it.
Just come up with some ideas. The fisheries
thing, somewhere I’d like to see the fisheries
thing where there’s -

Mr. Dunn: I think it should be like a
parallel program.

Chair: Yes.

Mr. Dunn: Some people like the farming.

Chair: Well, you got farming, fishing, and
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tourism is going to be there anyway. So
farming and fishing, it would be nice to sort
of tie some of that in.

Mr. Dunn: It is the fall season (Indistinct).

Leader of the Opposition: Can  we go in
camera for a moment?

An Hon. Member: Sure.

Clerk of Committees: Just make a motion.

Chair: Well, somebody’s got to make a
motion.

Leader of the Opposition: I move we go in
camera for a moment.

Chair: Well, you got to make a motion.

Dr. McKenna: Agreed.

Clerk of Committees: Agreed?

Chair: All right.

Is it agreed by the Committee that we go in
camera?

Mr. Bagnall: Yes.

Chair: All in favour, raise your hands.

Motion carried.

The Committee went in camera for some
minutes.

The Committee then adjourned


